
                                                                                                                                        
MINUTES OF THE IBERIA PARISH REGIONAL ZONING COMMISSION MEETING CONDUCTED ON 

THURSDAY, APRIL 16, 2015 AT 5:30PM IN THE IBERIA PARISH COUNCIL CHAMBERS LOCATED AT 
300 IBERIA STREET, NEW IBERIA, LA 70560 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  Acting Chairperson Dana Dugas determined that there was a quorum and called the 
Meeting to Order. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Nathaniel Mitchell, Jude Hebert, Dana Dugas, Perry Judice, Tommy Granger and 
David Fangue 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Jane Braud and Glenn Crappell 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: John Raines and Julie Armentor 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: David Fangue made a Motion to Accept the March 19, 2015 Meeting Minutes 
which was seconded by Perry Judice; the vote was unanimous. 
 
RECLASSIFICATION REQUEST #1:  Roger Duncan and Ronald Robinson, Jr. – Located at 6711 and 6805 
East Hwy 90 - Reclassification from Agricultural (A-1) to Single Family Residential (R-1). 
 
John Raines explained the location and the applicant’s request. 
 
Dana Dugas asked if there was someone in the audience to speak on behalf of Roger Duncan and 
Ronald Robinson, Jr. and there was no one present. 
 
Chairperson Dugas requested additional public input and there being none, closed the Public Hearing 
and requested guidance from the Commission.   David Fangue made a Motion to approve the rezoning 
reclassification from Agricultural (A-1) to Single Family Residential (R-1) which was seconded by Jude 
Hebert; the vote was unanimous. 
 
SPECIAL USE/CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #1:    Joseph Broussard – located at 113 Suard Road – Allow 
for a Used Car Dealer Operation to transport cars. 
 
John Raines explained the location and the zoning and the applicant‘s request. Mr. Raines said Mr. 
Broussard came in to discuss with him the possibility of selling used cars on the property and he 
explained that he would have to rezone the property to Commercial which would probably not be 
approved and that his only option was to ask for Special Use/Conditional Use Permit which would also 
probably be an uphill battle. Mr. Broussard said he would generate the support from the 
neighborhood.  
 



Joseph Broussard addressed the Commission and explained that he was asking for approval for a used 
car lot.  Mr. Broussard said he was just trying to buy cars at the auction and transport them.  Mr. 
Broussard also said he needed a dealer’s license to dock the vehicles there and to move the vehicle 
back and forth.  
 
John Raines explained that Mr. Broussard was referring to the Department of Motor Vehicle 
requirement to get a license to buy at auctions and an approved business license from the local 
community.  Mr. Broussard brought an approval letter from the Department of Motor Vehicle 
requesting Mr. Raines’ concurrence to sell cars. Mr. Raines said since it was not zoned correctly, which 
was one of the questions included in the form Mr. Broussard either had to be previously 
grandfathered in or get a special exception.  Mr. Raines said they do the Department of Motor Vehicle 
letters every year and it has to be renewed but for someone new to get started he would need to get 
over that first hurdle which led to this situation.  
 
Tommy Granger asked how many cars would he be selling and the activity of a mechanic shop.  Mr. 
Raines said if they requested a conditional use that it was up the Commission to set the conditions 
about how many cars and the activity in the shop.  
 
Clarence Lewis said it was located behind his house and he was worried about the traffic and he said it 
was hard for him to sleep now and he also said that there were more houses down Suard Road.  
 
Letisha Broussard explained that she was in business with Joseph Broussard and all they were trying 
to do was get a license to transport vehicles back and forth.  She said they were not using the shop as 
a mechanic shop.  She just wanted the special use/conditional use permit even if it is for a certain 
period of time.  She also said that they would put up fences and do whatever they wanted them to do 
to get this.  She said they only had one truck and one trailer which holds about 4-6 cars.   
 
Dana Dugas said that they could give them a time and limit the amount of cars that could be there and 
maybe have some guide lines; he asked Mr. Lewis if that would be okay with him and Mr. Lewis said 
that would be fine.  
 
Chairperson Dugas requested additional public input and there being none, closed the Public Hearing 
and requested guidance from the Commission. Nathaniel Mitchell made a Motion to table the request 
so that we can notify more residents in the neighborhood and specify special use guide lines, which 
was seconded by Perry Judice; the vote was unanimous.  
 
SPECIAL USE/CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #2:  R and V Enterprises, LLC – Jimmy Verret – Right of 5803 
East Old Spanish Trail – Build boat dock and a building. 
 
John Raines explained the location of the property and that the surrounding areas were zoned Mixed  
Residential (R-2).  Mr. Raines said that the site in question at one point in time had some sort of boat 
activity.  



Mr. Jimmy Verret addressed the Commission asking to get a Special Use/Conditional Use to use 
existing slip to park barges.  Mr. Verret said in the future he may have a building with required 
parking for 15 employees at some point in time.  Mr. Verret said he was not asking to rezone.  
 
Jenny Lacour addressed the Commission and said she lived across the bayou from the location 
and it was zoned Single Family Residential (R-1).  She said she was concerned about erosion, the 
waste, smells and activities and was in opposition of this request.  
 
Barry Lacour addresses the Commission and said he looked up the zoning regulation under Mixed 
Residential that gives permitted uses by special use and he said it does not give an example of a 
commercial or industrial use.  He said he appreciated Mr. Verret not asking for the Commercial 
Rezoning but he is asking for the use to be changed to Commercial.  He was worried about erosion 
and also the value of his property. Mr. Lacour said if he was to get this special use permit he would be 
setting precedent down the road.  
 
Jeanne Roane spoke about Island Boats and Swift Ships and what happened in the past and how the 
noise was really bad and burning mulch was terrible.  She said it seemed to her that they are just 
getting around rezoning it to get a special consideration and it is still being used as commercial. 
She said since he no longer has his lease at the port she doesn’t want the business in their area.   
 
Terry Credeur was in opposition and he also remembered the issues with the other boats companies 
and he doesn’t want that in his neighborhood. 
 
Mike Parrish said some of same concerns that he had was erosion from barges.  Mr. Parrish said he 
has been around barges all his life and worked in oilfield.  He also said if this development goes 
through and they have breakdowns at night and Mr. Verret has customers to satisfy it will have to be 
fixed at any time of the night or day and it will be noisy.  He was in opposition of the request. 
 
Ted Haik addressed the Commission and said some of the points that were made were quite 
significant.  But he said after the comments were made and he thought about it there were 
considerations that had to be made. The first was precedent, the second was if Mr. Verret’s future 
business grows how many more barges will he have and how many will fit in the slip and he also said 
if there is housing they will have activity on the barge along with erosion.  Mr. Haik asked about 
penalties if he does more than he is allowed to.  Mr. Haik was in opposition of the request. 
 
Richard Fleming said he heard valid concerns from his neighbors especially those who live on the 
Bayou Teche and Mr. Fleming said his concerns were different since he lived across the street.  Mr. 
Fleming said the property as of now is very well kept but he was concerned about the parking area.  
Mr. Fleming also said if they were just parking the barges that would not be a concern to him but if 
Mr. Verret is building two buildings and quite a bit of parking that concerns him. Mr. Fleming was in 
opposition of the request. 
 



Edward Duhe had the same concerns as the other neighbors but was mostly concerned about the 
noise, barge traffic and erosion and was in opposition of the request.  
 
Tommy Duhe addressed the Commission and was there to support his neighbors and he was in 
opposition of the request.  
 
Jimmy Verret addressed the Commission again and said he was overwhelmed with all the concerns 
and explained what his plans were so they could understand what he was doing.   Mr. Verret asked 
the neighbors to talk to him after the meeting to explain further. He said he was not asking for 
rezoning and was just asking for Special Use/Conditional Use Permit.   
 
Rachel Comeaux said the barges did not have enough depth in the middle of the bayou to turn 
around. Mrs. Comeaux also said that she realized that he does want to change the property to 
Commerical but was asking to use it as Commercial and would like to keep the area zoned Mixed 
Residential (R-2) with no Special Use/Conditional Use Permit.  
 
After further deliberation David Fangue made a Motion to deny the request, which was seconded by 
Nate Mitchell; the vote was four for the denial and two in opposition. 
 
TEXT ADMENDMENT #1:  Department of Permitting, Planning and Zoning – Minimum Lot Sizes to 
Reflect Board of Health Requirements - No action taken at this time. 
 
TEXT ADMENDMENT #2:  Department of Permitting, Planning and Zoning – Clarification of Uses in the 
Industrial District, Hazardous Materials District, Light Industrial and Heavy Industrial District - No 
action taken at this time. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT:  
 

1. Discuss Requirement for Recommendation from Director – Mr. Raines explained that the 
recommendation was in the Zoning Ordinance and Mr. Nate requested that Mr. Raines not 
give a recommendation so they can make their own decisions and not by biased by his 
decisions.  Mr. Raines said that he will no longer make recommendations.  

2.  Changes to Family Partition Procedures – Mr. Raines said he wanted to pass this by the 
Commissioners and explained that they need to have rules, minimum lot sizes, etc.   It will be 
further discussed at next month’s meeting.  
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
David Fangue made a Motion to adjourn which was seconded by Jude Hebert; the vote was 
unanimous.  

 
         Respectfully Submitted By,  

John Raines 


